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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2017
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Our discussion and analysis of Montezuma County (Cortez) School District RE-1,
Colorado’s (District) financial performance provides an overview of the District’s
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Please consider the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that can be found
in the basic financial statements, which begin on page 14.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
➢ The District’s net position, resulting from of this year’s operations, decreased
$9,944,548.
•

The District showed an increase of $613,101 before the net pension
expense of $10,557,649, due to the implementation of GASB 68, relating
to how pension expenses are presented. $458,702 of the increase was
attributable to collections of delinquent tax from Kinder Morgan.

➢ The District’s total revenue was $27,613,320 which is a decrease of $1,388,767
from $29,002,087 in the prior year.
•

General revenues (primarily state equalization and property tax)
accounted for $19,929,504 in revenue or 72.2% of all revenues. Program
specific revenues in the form of charges for services and grants account
for $7,683,816 the remaining 27.8%.

➢ The District incurred $37,557,868 in expenses which is an increase of
$9,010,216 (due to GASB 68 net pension expense of $10,557,649) from
$28,547,652 in the prior year. $7,683,816 of these expenses were offset by
program specific charges for services, grants and contributions. The general
revenues of $19,929,504 was not adequate, by $9,944,848, to cover all the
expenditures that were not offset by program specific revenues.
➢ The General Fund reported a $1,580,555 increase in fund balance from
$5,638,472 in the prior year to $7,219,027. This increase is 28%. However,
$458,702 of the increase are tax revenues collected from Kinder Morgan and will
be recorded as a committed fund balance in case the monies must be returned.
The General Fund increase is $1,121,853 without the $458,702.
•
•

The General Fund revenues increased (excluding the $458,702 above)
$240,242 from $19,203,931 to $19,444,173, for an 1.3% increase.
The General Fund expenditures decreased $164,993 from $18,556,363 in
the prior year to $18,391,370.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2017
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. Management’s
Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Districts basic
financial statements. Comparison to the prior year’s activity is provided in this
document. The basic financial statements are comprised of three components.
➢ Government-wide financial statements.
➢ Fund financial statements.
➢ Notes to the basic financial statements.
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves.
Government-wide Statements
The Government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader of the
District’s Annual Financial Report a broad overview of the financial activities in a
manner similar to a private sector business. The government-wide financial statements
include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.
➢ The Statement of Net Position presents information about all the District’s
assets, liabilities and deferred outflows/inflows, with the difference reported as
net position.
➢ The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the net position of
the District changed during the current fiscal year. Changes in net position are
recorded in the Statement of Activities when the underlying event occurs,
regardless of the timing of related cash flow. Thus, all the revenues and
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.
The Government-wide financial statements are one way to measure the District’s
financial health, or financial position
➢ Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position is an indicator of
whether its financial position is improving or deteriorating.
➢ To assess the District’s overall health, you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors such as changes in the District’s property tax base and the
condition of school facilities.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2017
In the government-wide financial statements, the District’s activities are presented in
the following category:
➢ Governmental activities - Most of the District’s basic services are included
here, such as instruction, transportation, maintenance and operations, and
administration. These activities are financed mainly through property taxes and
state equalization funds.
Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s
funds, focusing on its most significant or “major” funds, not the District as a whole.
Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of specific sources of
funding and spending on particular programs. Some funds are required to be
established by state law. However, the District establishes other funds to help it
manage and control its finances to achieve certain results.
The District uses three types of funds:
➢ Governmental funds - Most of the District’s basic services are included in
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those
funds and the balances remaining at year-end that are available for spending.
These funds are reported using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to
cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of
the District’s general operations and the services it provides. Governmental
fund information helps one determine whether there are more, or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s programs.
Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of
the government-wide statements, additional information at the bottom of the
governmental funds statements explains the relationship (or difference) between
them. The District maintains six different governmental funds. They are the
General Fund, Food Service Fund, Governmental Designated-Purpose Grants
Fund, Bond Redemption Fund, the High School Building Fund and the Capital
Projects Fund. They are all considered major funds due to their importance to
the District.
➢ Proprietary funds - Services for which the District charges a fee are generally
reported in proprietary funds. The District maintains one type of proprietary
fund, the internal service fund. Internal service funds are used to accumulate
and allocate costs internally among the District’s various functions. The District
uses an internal service fund to account for the employee medical benefit
activities related to the District’s employee medical benefit insurance needs.
5

MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2017
➢ Fiduciary funds- The District is the agent, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to
others, such as the Pupil Activity Fund. The District is responsible for ensuring
that the assets reported in this fund are used only for their intended purposes
and by those to whom the assets belong. The District excludes these activities
from the government-wide financial statements because it cannot use these
assets to finance its operations.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a
government’s financial position. In the case of the District, net position was
($3,798,544) at the close of the most recent fiscal year.
Net investment in capital assets (e.g. land and improvements, buildings, and equipment
net any related debt to acquire those assets that is still outstanding) represents
$32,841,094 of the net position. The District uses these capital assets to provide
services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the District’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. Property taxes are levied specifically to fund debt service on general
obligation bonds.
An additional $4,966,254 of the net position represents resources that are subject to
external restrictions on how they may be used. $850,000 of the restricted net position
is an emergency reserve required by the Tabor amendment; $138,473 for food service;
$1,422,991 is for the repayment of the general obligation bonds; $2,504,859 is for the
capital projects and $49,931 is for the Colorado Preschool Program.
The remaining ($41,605,892) is unrestricted net position. The negative balance is due
to the implementation of GASB 68, resulting in a net pension liability of $80,611,744,
representing the District’s share of the state retirement system plan. $1,251,294 that is
committed by the Board of Education for repayment (if necessary) to Kinder Morgan for
property taxes paid by Kinder Morgan that are being protested is included.
The following table indicates a summary of the Statement of Net Position for
Governmental Activities as of June 30, 2017, and 2016.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Table 1
Comparative Summary Statement of Net Position
At June 30
Governmental
Activities
2017
2016
Assets
Current assets
Capital assets, net of depreciation

$ 15,938,234
50,819,491

$ 14,975,179
51,966,699

Total assets

66,757,725

66,941,878

Deferred Outflows of Resources

30,993,228

5,344,896

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

2,595,129
98,590,141

2,434,092
61,785,084

101,185,270

64,219,176

364,227

1,921,594

Total liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Net Position
Invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

32,841,094
4,966,254
(41,605,892)

Total net position

33,191,393
4,962,273
(32,007,662)

$ (3,798,544) $ 6,146,004

At the close of the most recent fiscal year current assets, $15,938,234, comprised
23.8% of total assets, increasing from 22.4% in the prior year. The investments in
capital assets, less depreciation make up the remaining 76.2% of assets. Accrued
wages and benefits represent 83% of the total current liabilities. Accrued wages and
benefits occur when teachers and certain other District employee’s work nine or ten
months of the year, but are paid over a full twelve months. Current liabilities increased
$161,037 from $2,434,092 in the prior year to $2,595,129. There was a net increase in
noncurrent liabilities from the prior year of $36,805,057. This was due to the net
pension liability increase of ($37,601,966); less debt payments of $866,559 and
increase of debt due to proceeds from capital lease ($69,650). Deferred outflows of
resources net of deferred inflows of resources increased $27,205,699, due to the
implementation of GASB 68.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2017

The following table indicates the summary of Changes in Net Position for
Governmental Activities in the fiscal year 2017 and 2016.

Table 2
Comparative Summary of Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ending June 30
Governmental
Activities
2017
2016
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues
Taxes
State Equalization
Other

$ 5,898,823 $ 4,191,166
2,188,360
4,247,288
(403,367)
72,688
13,344,160
6,304,960
280,384

16,418,988
3,250,355
822,322

Total revenues

27,613,320

29,002,807

Expenses
Instruction
Students and instructional staff
Administration and business
Operations and maintenance of plant
Student transportation
Central and other support services
Food service operations
Facilities acquisition
Interest on long-term debt

18,588,122
4,349,770
3,217,456
2,777,273
1,585,056
3,115,068
1,384,586
1,992,989
547,548

13,371,748
3,631,992
2,267,323
2,177,929
1,157,760
2,642,253
1,180,243
1,545,958
572,446

Total expenses

37,557,868

28,547,652

Increase (decrease) in net position

$ (9,944,548) $

8

455,155

MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2017
State equalization and taxes accounted for most of the District’s total revenue, with
each contributing 22.2 percent and 47.0 percent respectively. Another 6.3 percent
came from state and federal grants and the remainder from charges for services and
miscellaneous sources. See Table 3.
The District’s expenses are predominately related to instruction, (50.3 percent). The
District’s administrative and business activities accounted for 8.6 percent of total costs.
See Table 4.

Table 3
Sources of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2017

Other
1.0%

Operating grants and
contributions
7.7%

Capital grants and
contributions
-1.4%
Charges for services
20.8%

State Equalization
22.2%

Taxes
47.0%
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Table 4
Expenses for Fiscal Year 2017

Support Services
8.5%
Student transportation
4.3%

Operations and
maintenance of plant
7.5%

Food Service
Operations
3.7%

Facilities acquisition
5.4%
Instruction
50.3%

Students and
Instructional Staff
11.8%

Administration and
Business
8.6%

Governmental Activities
The primary source of operating revenue for school districts comes from the School
Finance Act of 1994 (SFA). Under the SFA the District received $7,221.96 per funded
student. In fiscal year 2017 the funded pupil count was 2,717.5. Charter Schools
accounted for 296.8 of this funded pupil count. Funding for the SFA comes from
property taxes, specific ownership taxes and state equalization. The District receives
approximately 43.08 percent of this funding from state equalization while the remaining
SFA funding amounts consist of property and specific ownership taxes.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2017
The statement of activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for
services and grants offsetting those service costs. Table 5 shows, for governmental
activities, the total cost of services and net cost of services. That is, it identifies the
cost of these services supported by unrestricted state equalization and property taxes.

Table 5
Governmental Activities Net Cost of Services

Instruction
Students and Instructional staff
Administration and Business
Operations and maintenance of plant
Student transportation
Central and other support services
Food service operations
Facilities acquisition
Interest on long-term debt

Net Cost
Total Cost
of Services
of Services
2016
2017
2016
2017
$ 18,588,122 $ 13,371,748 $ 16,125,075 $ 11,443,325
1,925,417
3,203,518
3,631,992
4,349,770
2,177,293
3,140,273
2,267,323
3,217,456
2,177,929
2,777,273
2,177,929
2,777,273
864,387
1,293,908
1,157,760
1,585,056
(533,274)
90,327
2,642,253
3,115,068
148,204
347,410
1,180,243
1,384,586
1,260,783
2,348,720
1,545,958
1,992,989
572,446
547,548
572,446
547,548

Total

$ 37,557,868

$ 28,547,652

$ 29,874,052

$ 20,036,510

➢ The cost of all governmental activities during the year was $37,557,868.
➢ Some of the cost was financed by the users of the District’s programs
($5,898,823).
➢ Federal and state government subsidized $1,784,993.
➢ However, most of the District’s costs ($19,929,504) were financed by State and
District taxpayers. This portion of governmental activities was financed for the
most part with $6,304,960 in state equalization, net of per pupil charter school
allocation, from the School Finance Act of 1994 (SFA) and $13,344,160 in
property and specific ownership taxes.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2017
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS
As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The District has six funds that are
considered major under GASB 34 reporting requirements. Information about the
District’s government funds starts on page 16. These funds are accounted for using
the modified accrual basis of accounting. All governmental funds have total revenues
and other financing sources of $24,489,840 and expenditures and other financing uses
of $24,097,116.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The District’s budget is prepared according to Colorado law and is based on accounting
for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts and disbursements. The most
significant budgeted fund is the General Fund.
Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget by making
an increase in appropriations.
➢ Increases in appropriations were due primarily to additional funding that was
received after the original budget was prepared.
➢ Actual expenditures, including transfers were $1,223,578 below budget.
CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION
By the end of fiscal year 2017, the District has invested $74,156,175 in land, buildings,
and equipment (including vehicles). Table 6 shows capital assets for 2017 compared
to 2016:

Table 6
Capital Assets
At June 30

Land
Buildings
Equipment

Governmental
Activities
2017
2016
$ 812,080 $ 812,080
69,812,200
69,622,528
3,531,895
3,379,474

Total

$ 74,156,175
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(UNAUDITED)
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2017
Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 on page 36
of this report.
LONG-TERM DEBT
General obligation bonds were issued November 27, 2012 and February 6, 2013,
respectively, for the purpose of constructing a new high school. At June 30, 2016 the
balance of these bonds was $18,775,306. During fiscal year 2017 the District paid
principal of $866,559 to take the balance at June 30, 2017 to $17,908,747. In fiscal
year 2017 the District entered into a capital lease for the purchase of a bus for $69,750.
Additional information can be found in Note 7 on page 38 of this report.
CHARTER SCHOOLS
The Battlerock Charter School, the Southwest Open School and the Children’s Kiva
Montessori Charter School have been included in the District’s basic financial
statements in a separate column, as discretely presented component units. The
Charter Schools audits are located in the administration office of each of the Schools.
FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT’S FUTURE
At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District is not
aware of any existing circumstances that could significantly affect its financial health in
the future.
CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
This financial report is designed to provide the District’s citizens, taxpayers, parents,
and creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the
District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this
report, the financial statements of the component units, or need additional financial
information, contact the Business Office, Montezuma County (Cortez) School District
RE-1; P.O. Drawer R; 400 North Elm Street, Cortez, Colorado 81321.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017
Primary
Government
Governmental
Activities
Assets
Cash and investments
Cash with fiscal agent
Taxes receivable
Interfund receivable
Due from District Charter Schools
Intergovernmental accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Capital assets - net of depreciation

$

14,523,837
68,265
424,308
163,148
3,589
79,516
559,803
115,768

Component
Units
Charter
Schools
$

1,588,698

(3,589)
1,160
28,642
663
17,589
664,847

50,819,491

Total Assets

66,757,725

2,298,010

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pensions, net of accumulated amortization

30,993,228

3,557,091

163,148
143,398
2,153,557
135,026

3,842
911
187,487
75,264

912,754
17,065,643
80,611,744

4,281
8,588,493

101,185,270

8,860,278

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pensions, net of accumulated amortization

364,227

39,520

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

364,227

39,520

32,841,094

664,847

850,000
138,473
1,422,991
2,504,859
49,931
(41,605,892)

83,000

Liabilities
Interfund
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits payable
Grants unearned revenue
Other current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Net pension liability
Total Liabilities

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
TABOR
Food service
Debt service
Capital projects
Colorado Preschool Program
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

$

(3,798,544)

(3,792,544)
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
14

(3,044,697)

MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Primary Government
Governmental Activities
Instructional program services
Support program services
Students
Instructional staff
General administration
School administration
Business
Plant operation and maintenance
Student transportation
Central support services
Other support services
Food service operations
Facilities acquisition
Interest on long-term debt

Expenses

Charges
for
Services

$ 18,588,122

$ 1,443,712

1,766,806
2,582,964
533,690
2,149,874
533,892
2,777,273
1,585,056
3,052,054
63,014
1,384,586
1,992,989
547,548

336,982
809,270
27,215
13
49,955

Program revenues
Operating
Capital
Grants and
Grants and
Contributions Contributions

$ 1,019,335

15,550
3,024,741

275,598

174,749
16,636

862,427
31,000

37,557,868

5,898,823

2,188,360

Total Primary Government

$ 37,557,868

$ 5,898,823

$ 2,188,360

Component Units - Charter Schools

$ 4,436,573

$

$

Total Governmental Activities

22,851

Net (expenses) revenues and
changes in net position
Primary
Component
Government
Units
Governmental
Charter
Activities
Schools

504,741

$

$

(16,125,075)
(1,429,824)
(1,773,694)
(506,475)
(2,149,861)
(483,937)
(2,777,273)
(1,293,908)
(27,313)
(63,014)
(347,410)
(2,348,720)
(547,548)

(403,367)

(403,367)

(29,874,052)

$

(403,367)

(29,874,052)

$

73,862

$ (3,835,119)

General Revenues
Property tax for general purposes
Property tax for repayment of debt
Specific ownership tax for general purposes
Intergovernmental
State Equalization
Per pupil charter school allocation
Mineral leasing
Public lands
Impact aid
Miscellaneous

10,795,574
1,484,908
1,063,678
8,447,660
(2,142,700)
156,957
13,020

2,142,700

110,407

673
33,529
28,696

Total General Revenues

19,929,504

2,205,598

Changes in Net Position

(9,944,548)

(1,629,521)

6,146,004

(1,415,176)

Net Position Beginning of the Year
Net Position End of the Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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(3,798,544)

$ (3,044,697)

MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2017

General
Fund
Assets
Cash and investments
Cash with fiscal agent
Taxes receivable
Interfund receivable
Due from Charter Schools
Intergovernmental receivable
Grants receivable
Other receivable

$ 8,785,843
28,424
370,894
35,828
3,589

Liabilities
Interfund payable
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and benefits payable
Grants deferred revenue

$

Fund Balances
Restricted
TABOR
Food service
Debt service
Capital projects
Colorado Preschool Program
Committed
Unrestricted
Assigned for next year's expenditures
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances

135,804

$

100,239

Bond
Redemption
Fund

High School
Building
Fund

$ 1,393,341
3,841
53,414

$ 1,628,091

Capital
Projects
Fund
686,808

$ 12,730,126
32,265
424,308
163,148
3,589
79,516
559,803
115,768

$

686,808

$ 14,108,523

127,320

303,691

$

215,320

$

531,250

$

205
5,718
70,924

$

120,673
1,865,601

162,943
7,493
217,032
135,026

1,986,274

76,847

199,474

$ 1,450,596

$ 1,827,565

$
$

9,514

522,494

191,683

9,514

$

27,605

219,288

138,473
1,422,991
1,818,051

$

686,808

49,931
1,251,294
8,756

7,219,027

$ 9,396,984

138,473

$

215,320

$

163,148
143,398
2,153,557
135,026
2,595,129

850,000

5,067,802

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

79,516

$ 9,396,984

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenue - property tax

$

56,638
115,768

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

Food Service
Fund

Governmental
DesignatedPurpose Grants
Fund

850,000
138,473
1,422,991
2,504,859
49,931
1,251,294
5,076,558

8,756

1,422,991

1,818,051

531,250

$ 1,450,596

$ 1,827,565

$

686,808

11,294,106

686,808

$ 14,108,523

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet with the Statement of Net Position
Total Fund Balance Governmental Funds

$ 11,294,106

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds.
Capital assets
Accumulated depreciation

$ 74,156,175
(23,336,684)
50,819,491

Unavailable revenues are not available to pay for current period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.
Long-term liabilities and related items, including net pension liability and pension-related deferred outflows/inflows of resources,
are not due and payable in the current year, and, therefore, are not reported in governmental funds.
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Net pension liability
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions - net
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions - net

219,288

(912,754)
(17,065,643)
(80,611,744)
30,993,228
(364,227)
(67,961,140)

The internal service funds are used by the District to account for the costs of employee medical
benefits. The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund is included with
governmental activities.
Total Net Position Governmental Activities

1,829,711
$ (3,798,544)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

General
Fund
Revenues
Local sources
Taxes
Other
Intermediate sources
State sources
State Equalization
Per pupil charter school allocation
Grants
Federal sources
Grants
Total Revenues
Expenditures
Instructional program services
Support program services
Students
Instructional staff
General administration
School administration
Business
Plant operation and maintenance
Student transportation
Central support services
Other support services
Food service operations
Facilities acquisition
Debt service
Total Expenditures
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures

$ 11,667,569
469,837
169,977

Food Service
Fund

Governmental
DesignatedPurpose Grants
Fund

Bond
Redemption
Fund

High School
Building
Fund

$

$

$ 1,457,303
7,327

$

8,447,660
(2,142,700)
755,284

174,822

150,693

18,485

1,647,178

535,248

843,942

559,260

19,902,875

1,037,249

2,357,131

Capital
Projects
Fund

Total
Governmental
Funds

$
6,871

$

59,801

8,447,660
(2,142,700)
2,503,355

82,408
(490,775)
1,464,630

1,447,675

(483,904)

142,209

11,097,201

1,179,302

790,797
924,374
375,932
1,355,133
312,338
2,089,790
1,080,859
330,687
34,259

336,982
758,349
5,564
21,664
49,955

4,076

3,564

45,000

24,420,190

12,276,503
1,131,855
1,682,723
381,496
1,376,797
362,312
2,089,790
1,129,423
330,687
34,259
1,084,951
802,213
1,414,107
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1,081,482
528,450

3,469
273,763

528,450

326,327

1,414,107
18,391,370

1,081,482

1,511,505

(44,233)

13,124,872
869,351
169,977

2,355,380

1,414,107

1,751

50,523

(1,012,354)

24,097,116

(184,118)

323,074

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in (out)
Proceeds from capital lease

(600)
69,650

600

69,650

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

69,050

600

69,650

Net Change in Fund Balances

1,580,555

(44,233)

1,751

50,523

Fund Balances Beginning of the Year

5,638,472

182,706

7,005
8,756

Fund Balances End of the Year

$ 7,219,027

$

138,473

$

(1,011,754)

(184,118)

1,372,468

2,829,805

870,926

$ 1,422,991

$ 1,818,051

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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$

686,808

392,724
10,901,382
$

11,294,106

MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Net Change in Fund Balances Governmental Funds

$

392,724

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation
exceeded capital outlay in the current period.
Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

$

342,093
(1,489,301)
(1,147,208)

Revenue in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenue in the funds.
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds. This amount represents the change in net position liability,
pension-related deferred outflows/inflows of resources in the current period.
Pension contributions
Pension expense
Proceeds from capital lease
Principal payment on long-term debt

219,288

2,212,967
(12,770,616)
(69,650)
866,559
(9,760,740)

The change in net position of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

351,388

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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(9,944,548)

MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues
Local sources
Property taxes
Specific ownership tax
Charges for services
Other
Intermediate sources
Mineral Lease
Public School Lands
State sources
State Equalization
Per pupil charter school allocation
Grants
Federal sources
Grants

$

12,761,696
945,002
432,200
60,307

$

195,000
105,000

12,761,696
945,002
518,927
60,300

$

195,000
105,000

5,246,294
(2,186,830)
660,011

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Actual
Amounts

10,603,891
1,063,678
371,557
98,280

$

156,957
13,020

5,246,294
(2,186,830)
660,011

(2,157,805)
118,676
(147,370)
37,980
(38,043)
(91,980)

8,447,660
(2,142,700)
755,284

3,201,366
44,130
95,273

500,000

500,000

535,248

35,248

18,718,680

18,805,400

19,902,875

1,097,475

13,721,078

13,832,315

11,097,201

2,735,114

68,327
393,014
419,156
1,357,767
324,995
1,495,383
1,072,226
484,076
8,645

68,344
393,014
422,609
1,357,767
324,620
1,502,196
1,072,226
484,076
8,645

790,797
924,374
375,932
1,355,133
312,338
2,089,790
1,080,859
330,687
34,259

3,620,492

149,136

Total Expenditures

22,965,159

19,614,948

Excess revenues over (under) expenditures

(4,246,479)

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Instructional Program
Support Programs
Students
Instructional staff
General administration
School administration
Business
Plant operation and maintenance
Student transportation
Central support services
Other support services
Other
Appropriated reserves

(809,548)

(722,453)
(531,360)
46,677
2,634
12,282
(587,594)
(8,633)
153,389
(25,614)
149,136

18,391,370

1,223,578

1,511,505

2,321,053

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Capital Lease
Transfers Out

69,650
(600)

69,650
(600)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

69,050

69,050

1,580,555

2,390,103

5,638,472

-

Net Change in Fund Balances

(4,246,479)

Fund Balances beginning of the year
Fund Balances end of the year

(809,548)

4,246,479
$

-

5,638,472
$

4,828,924

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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7,219,027

$

2,390,103

MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual
Special Revenue Fund
Food Service Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

(Non GAAP Basis)
Actual
Amounts

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues
Local sources
Food sales
Other
State sources
Grants
Federal sources
Grants

$

Total local sources
Expenditures
Support programs
Food service operations
Salaries
Employee benefits
Purchased services
Property
Other
Food and supplies
Property
Other
Appropriated reserves
Total Expenditures
Excess revenue over (under) expenditures
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance beginning of the year
Fund balance end of the year

155,090
150

$

155,090
150

$

174,749
73

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

$

19,659
(77)

33,100

33,100

18,485

(14,615)

835,238

835,238

843,942

8,704

1,023,578

1,023,578

1,037,249

13,671

324,300
210,264

324,300
210,264

350,212
234,526

(25,912)
(24,262)

5,000
3,000
503,788
5,500
15,000
71,823

5,000
3,000
503,788
5,500
15,000
139,342

8,199
620
468,361
63
19,501

(3,199)
2,380
35,427
5,437
(4,501)
139,342

1,138,675

1,206,194

1,081,482

124,712

(115,097)

(182,616)

(44,233)

138,383

(115,097)

(182,616)

(44,233)

138,383

115,097

182,616

182,706

$

-

$

-

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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138,473

90
$

138,473

MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
Governmental Designated-Purpose Grants Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues
Local sources
Grants
State sources
Grants
Federal sources
Grants

$

165,240

$

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Actual
Amounts

193,779

$

150,693

$

(43,086)

501,251

466,388

1,647,178

1,602,047

2,464,570

559,260

(1,905,310)

2,268,538

3,124,737

2,357,131

(767,606)

957,105
303,527
845,496
57,761
59,775
44,874

1,037,624

1,179,302

(141,678)

365,547
1,574,594
40,000
54,899
45,673
3,400
3,000

336,982
758,349
5,564
21,664
49,955
3,564

28,565
816,245
34,436
33,235
(4,282)
(164)
3,000

2,268,538

3,124,737

2,355,380

769,357

Excess revenues over (under) expenditures

-

-

1,751

1,751

Net Change in Fund Balances

-

-

1,751

1,751

Fund Balances beginning of the year

-

-

7,005

7,005

Total Revenues
Expenditures
Instructional Program
Support Programs
Students
Instructional staff
General administration
School administration
Business
Student transportation
Other support services
Total Expenditures

Fund Balances end of the year

$

-

$

-

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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8,756

1,180,790

$

8,756

MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017

Governmental
Activities
Internal Service
Fund
Self-Insurance
Fund
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and investments
Cash with fiscal agent

$

Total Current Assets

1,793,711
36,000
1,829,711

Total Assets

1,829,711

Net Position
Restricted

1,829,711

Total Net Position

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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1,829,711

MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
Governmental
Activities
Internal Service
Fund
Self-Insurance
Fund
Operating Revenues
Premiums

$

Operating Expenses
Central service
Purchased services
Other

2,968,515

(2,622,454)

Operating income (loss)

346,061

Non-Operating Revenue (Expense)
Local sources
Earnings on investments

5,327

Net income (loss)

351,388

Net Position Beginning of the Year
Net Position End of the Year

1,478,323
$

1,829,711

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Governmental
Funds
Internal Service
Fund
Self-Insurance
Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services

$

Net Cash Flows provided (used) by Operating Activities

2,968,515
(2,622,454)
346,061

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Earnings on investments

5,327

Net Cash Flows provided (used) by Investing Activities

5,327

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

351,388

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning of the Year

1,478,323

Cash and Cash Equivalents End of the Year

$

1,829,711

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to Net
Cash provided (used) by Operating Activities
Operating income (loss)

$

346,061

$

346,061

Total adjustments
Net Cash Flows provided (used) by Operating Activities

The accompanying notes are integral part of this statement.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
Fiduciary Fund
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
As of June 30, 2017
Agency
Fund
Assets
Cash

$

288,202

Total Assets

$

288,202

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to agency recipients

$

2,413
285,789

Total Liabilities

$

288,202

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The financial statements of Montezuma County (Cortez) School District RE-1 (the District) have
been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied
to local governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements
(Statements of Interpretations).
The following significant accounting policies were applied in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements.
Reporting Entity - The District is governed by a seven-member Board of Education (“Board”)
and is organized and operates in accordance with Colorado statutes. Board members are
elected by the citizens of the District, not appointed by any other governing body. The Board
selects the superintendent of schools. The Board is solely responsible for the District’s budget
adoption process. The District has the authority to levy taxes and issue debt. The District
meets the criteria of a primary government; its’ board is the publicly elected governing body; it
is a legally separate entity; and it is fiscally independent. The District is not included in any
other government reporting entity.
Charter Schools - The Legislature of the State of Colorado enacted the “Charter School Act –
Colorado Revised Statutes (CRS) Section 22-30.5-101 in 1993. This act permits the District to
contract with individuals and organizations for the operation of schools within the District. The
statutes define these contracted schools as “charter schools.” Charter schools are financed
from a portion of the District’s School Finance Act Revenues (based on student enrollment),
state and federal grants, as well as other revenues generated by the charter schools, within the
limits established by the Charter School Act. Charter schools have separate governing boards;
however, the District’s Board of Education must approve all charter school applications and
budgets. Based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement 61, The Financial Reporting Entity:
Omnibus and amendment of GASB 14 and 34, the Battlerock Charter School, the Southwest
Open School and the Children’s Kiva Montessori Charter School have been included in the
District’s basic financial statements in a separate column, as discretely presented component
units. The Charter Schools audits are available in the administration office of each of the
Schools.
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements - The government-wide financial
statements (the statement of net position and the statement of activities) display information on
all the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from Business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on charges for
support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from its legally separate
component units for which the District is financially accountable.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expense of a given
function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) fees and
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services
or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are reported as
general revenues.
The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental
funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental and enterprise
funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds. The District has no non-major funds.
Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting - The government-wide financial statements
are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of the related cash flow. On an accrual basis, property taxes are recognized as revenue
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue in the
fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
The effect of interfund activity has generally been eliminated from the governmental-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this are charges between the District’s governmental and
business-type activities and component units. Elimination of these charges would distort the
direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for the District’s general
governmental activities including the collection and disbursement of earmarked funds (special
revenue funds). Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the period or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current fiscal period. For this purpose, the government considers
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt services expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due
and payable. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. Proceeds from long-term debt and capital leases are reported as other financing
sources.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
Those revenues subject to accrual are property taxes, charges for services and expended
grants associated with the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.
The accounts of the District are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an
independent fiscal accounting entity, with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting
segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in
demonstrating compliance with finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum
number of funds maintained by the District is consistent with legal and managerial
requirements. The District reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund – The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. Major revenue sources include local property taxes, specific ownership taxes, and
State of Colorado equalization funding, as determined by the School Finance Act of 1994,
as amended.
Food Service Fund – The Food Service Fund is used to account for the financial
transactions related to the food service operations of the District.
Governmental Designated Purpose Grants Fund - The Governmental Designated
Purpose Grants Fund maintains a separate accounting for programs funded by federal,
state and local grants.
Bond Redemption Fund – The Bond Redemption Fund is used to account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, long-term debt principal, interest and
related costs.
High School Building Fund – The High School Building Fund is used to account for the
accumulation of funds from the Colorado BEST Grant and the voter approved general
obligation bonds along with the associated expenditure of those funds for the construction of
a new high school.
Capital Projects Fund – The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the accumulation
of resources and expenditure of resources for capital improvements within the District.
Proprietary Funds – Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal revenues of the District’s enterprise funds are charges for services. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds include cost of sales and services and administrative expenses.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues
and expenses. The District reports the following proprietary fund:
Internal Service Fund – Self Insurance Fund – The Self Insurance Fund is used to
account for the District’s medical benefit program.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
Fiduciary Funds – Fiduciary Funds reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets.
The fiduciary funds account for assets held by the District under a trust agreement for
individuals, private organizations, or other governments and are therefore not available to
support the District’s own programs.
Agency Funds – Agency Funds are custodial in nature and does not present results of
operations or a measurement focus. The District has one agency fund, the Pupil Activity
Fund.
Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Equity
Cash and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash
flows, are to be considered highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less. Investments in external investment pools are stated at cost, which is equal to fair value.
Due to/from Charter Schools - Due to/from Charter Schools represents amounts that are due
to/from the Charter Schools. The amounts are normal transactions that are paid in the next two
months or less.
Short-term Interfund Receivable/Payables – During the course of operations, transactions
occur between individual funds for goods or services rendered. These are paid in the next two
months or less.
Grants Accounts Receivable - State and federal grants are considered to be earned to the
extent of expenditures made under the provisions of the grant. Grants receivable are recorded
when expenditures are made and the grant monies have not been received.
Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include land, building and improvements, furniture,
equipment, and vehicles are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000
and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are
valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated. The District maintains a capitalization
threshold of $25,000 for major outlays for buildings and improvements. The District does not
possess any infrastructure.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of an asset or
materially extend the life of an asset are not capitalized.
All reported capital assets are depreciated. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the following useful lives:
Buildings and Improvements
Furniture and Equipment
Vehicles

20-50 Years
5-15 Years
8 Years
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources – In additions to assets, the statement of financial
position and balance sheets will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position and fund balance that applies to future period(s) and
so will not be recognized as an outflow or resources (expense/expenditure) until that time.
In addition to the liabilities, the statement of financial position and balance sheets will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position and
fund balance that applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time.
Accrued Salaries and Benefits Payable – Accrued salaries and benefits payable represent
the liability to teachers and certain other employees who earn their salaries over the ninemonth school year bur are paid over a twelve-month period. Changes in the accrual are
reflected in expenditures or expense on the applicable fund’s statement of revenue,
expenditures and changed in fund balance.
Compensated Absences – Under the District’s policies, employees earn vacation leave and
sick leave based on longevity of services or position.
Instructional staff vacation must be taken during the summer, before the succeeding school
term, or be lost. Administrative staff vacation shall be 16 days per year. Unused vacation may
be accumulated up to 30 days. Vacation for support staff accumulates at 10 to 20 days per
year. Unused vacation can accumulate up to 5 days. Vacations are to be taken throughout the
year (and not accumulate over into another year). Vacation is not accrued since the amount
does not exceed a normal year’s accumulation.
Sick leave with pay shall be granted to each employee of the District. It may be used for the
employee’s illness, quarantine or disability or for the illness or death of members of the
immediate family.
Sick leave will begin accruing on the first day of employment and will accrue at the rate of 10
days per year, plus an additional two days for employees having twelve-month contracts. A
maximum of 60 days sick leave may be accumulated. Days, as specified here pertain to
teaching days.
If an employee is unable to return to work after sixty (60) consecutive working days, he will be
dropped from the payroll and transferred to income protection, but he will maintain his tenure
and salary increment status at the time of his illness or disability if he returns to service in the
District within 24 months from the date of the beginning of personal deduction. Accumulated
sick leave does not vest with the employee; that is, the employees have no right to be
reimbursed for unused sick leave if they terminate. Under generally accepted accounting
principles, there is, therefore, no expense or liability for accumulated sick leave or vacation
included in the financial statements.
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Grants Deferred Revenues – Grants deferred revenue arise when resources are received by
the District before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to
meeting eligibility requirements. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria
are met, or when the District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue
is removed and revenue is recognized.
Long-term Debt - In the government-wide financial statements long-term debt and other longterm obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities.
Fund Equity - The fund balances of the governmental funds are reported in classifications
based on the extent to which the District is bound to honor constraints for the specific purposes
on which amounts in the fund can be spent as follows;
•
•
•

•
•

Nonspendable fund balance represents assets that cannot be spent because of their
form or legally or contractually must be maintained intact.
Restricted fund balance reflects resources that are subject to externally enforceable
legal limitations.
Committed fund balance is the portion that is limited to specific purposes determined
by a formal action of the Board of Education, the District’s highest level of decision
making authority. Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through
resolutions approved by the Board of Education.
Assigned fund balance displays the District’s intended use of these resources. The
assigned fund balance amounts are assigned by the business manager, per the
District policy.
Unassigned fund balance represents resources with residual net resources.

Restricted fund balance consists of required TABOR reserves of $850,000, debt service per
covenants of $1,422,991; $138,473 for Food Services; $686,808 for capital projects; $49,931
for the Colorado Preschool Program and the high school capital projects of $1,818,051.
When determining categories of fund balance, it is assumed that the type of expenditure
determines the primary use of fund balance. When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted
funds to have been spent first. Once the commitment or assignment is satisfied unassigned
resources are used.
Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of
resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets,
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those
assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are liabilities imposed on their use
either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.
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Pensions – The District participates in the School Division Trust Fund (SCHDTF), a costsharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public Employees’
Retirement Association of Colorado (“PERA”). The net pension liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, information
about the fiduciary net position, and additions to and deductions from the fiduciary net position
of the SCHDTF have been determined using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
Inter-fund Transactions - Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues,
expenditures or expenses. Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for
expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are
recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of
expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. All other interfund transactions, except
quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported as transfers.
Property Tax Revenue Recognition - Property taxes for a calendar year are certified by the
Board of Education by December 15 and levied on assessed valuation by the county
commissioners by December 22, are due and payable in the subsequent calendar year.
Assessed values are established by the county assessor. Property taxes attach as an
enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of the year in which payable. Property taxes are
payable in full by April 30 or in two equal installments due February 28 and June 15. The
county bills and collects property taxes for all taxing districts in the county. The property tax
receipts collected by the county are generally remitted to the District in the subsequent month.
Operating Revenues and Expenses - Operating revenues are those revenues that are
generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary funds. For the District, these
revenues are premiums related to medical benefits. Operating expenses are necessary costs
incurred to provide the goods or services that are the primary activities of the fund. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting - The District is required by Colorado Statutes to adopt
annual budgets for all funds. Each budget is prepared on the same basis (GAAP basis) as that
used for accounting purposes.
The following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:
Prior to June 1, the Superintendent’s staff submits to the Board of Education a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1.
The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.
Public hearings are conducted to obtain comments.
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Prior to June 30, the budget is legally adopted through passage of a resolution by the Board
of Education. However, the Board can review and change the adopted budget through
January 31.
Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year.
Encumbrance accounting is employed by the District. Encumbrances outstanding at year
end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year.

2. Cash and Investments
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the District’s
deposits might not be recovered. However, there is no custodial risk for public deposits
because they are collateralized under the Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA). The
PDPA specify eligible depositories for public cash deposits, which must be Colorado institutions
and must maintain federal insurance on deposits held. Each eligible depository with deposits in
excess of the insured levels must pledge a collateral pool of defined eligible assets, to be
maintained by another institution or held in trust for all of its local governmental depositors as a
group, with a market value at least 102% of the uninsured deposits. The State Regulatory
Commissions for banks and savings and loan associations are required by statue to monitor
the naming of eligible depositories and the reporting of uninsured deposits and assets
maintained in the collateral pools.
For investments, custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. Colorado statues define eligible investments for local
governments. Those include bonds and other interest-bearing obligations of or guaranteed by
the United States government or its agencies, bonds which are direct obligations of the State of
Colorado or any of it political subdivisions, repurchase agreements, commercial paper,
guarantee investment contracts and local government investment pools. The District has no
investments exposed to custodial credit risk.
Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Colorado revised statutes limits maturities to five years or less. The
District has no investments exposed to interest rate risk.
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligations to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized
statistical rating organization. Credit risk in the portfolio is minimized by investing the majority
of asset in US Treasury and Instrumentalities which have the support of US government and
failure to receive maturing funds is remote.
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At June 30, 2017, the District had investments in one local governmental investment pool, the
Colorado Government Liquid Asset Trust (COLOTRUST). COLOTRUST is an investment
vehicle established for local government entities in Colorado to pool surplus funds for
investment purposes. COLOTRUST is routinely monitored by the Colorado Division of
Securities with regard to its operations and investments, which are also subject to provisions of
C.R.S. Title 24, Article 75, and Section 6. The fair value of the investments in COLOTRUST is
the same as the value of the pool shares. None of these types of investments are categorized
because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.
COLOTRUST is rated AAAm from Standard and Poor’s. Financial statements for
COLOTRUST may be obtained at www.colotrust.com.
At June 30, 2017, the carrying amount of the District’s cash and investments was $14,812,039,
including $288,202 of agency fund deposits. The District’s bank balances were $5,853,993 and
COLOTRUST balances were $9,444,958. The District’s bank balances at June 30, 2017 and
during the year ended June 30, 2017 were entirely covered by FDIC insurance or pledged
collateral held by the District’s agent banks in the name of governmental accounts of which the
District is a part.

3. Interfund Balances and Transfers
Balances of interfund receivables, payables and transfers at June 30, 2017 are as follows:

Fund
General Fund
Food Service Fund
Governmental Designated
Purpose Grants Fund
High School Building Fund
Totals

Due
To
$ 35,828

Due
From
$

127,320

$ 163,148

Transfer
In

Transfer
Out
$
600

205
162,943

$ 163,148

$

600

$

600

$

600

All interfund receivables and payables are the result of normal business and are expected to be
paid in the next two months or less.
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4. Federal and State Administered Grants
Federal and state administered grants are considered to be earned to the extent of
expenditures made under the provisions of the grant and, accordingly, when such funds are
received they are recorded as deferred revenues until earned. Receivables and Deferred
Revenues at June 30, 2017 are as follows:

Fund
Governmental Designated Purpose Grants Fund
Local Grants
State Grants
From Colorado Department of Education
ELPA
Expelled and At Risk Students
Advanced Placement
Best Grant
Other Grants
Federal Grants
From Colorado Department of Education
Title I
Title I Pathways
Title I TIG
Title II Part A Teacher Quality
Title II Part B Math and Science Ptr
21st Century
Connect for Success
Title VI Part B Rural and Low Income

Receivable
$

1,657

3,750
199,474
56,638

99,350
45,509
23,901
9,924
57,235
22,894

Unearned
Revenue
$

99,683

17,231
3,748
4,781

5,957

3,626
7,269

Other Grants

32,202

Totals

$

35
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5. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 follows:
Capital
Assets
July 1, 2016
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, being depreciated
Buildings and Improvements
Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, being depreciated

Decrease

$ 69,622,528 $ 189,672
3,379,474
152,421
(21,847,385)
(1,489,299)
51,154,617

Capital Assets, not being depreciated
Land
Total Governmental Activities Capital Assets

Increase

Capital
Assets
June 30, 2017

$ 69,812,200
3,531,895
(23,336,684)

(1,147,206)

-

50,007,411

812,080

812,080

$ 51,966,697 $ (1,147,206) $

- $ 50,819,491

Depreciation expense was charges as a direct expense to the following governmental
programs:
Instruction
Operations and Maintenance
Transportation
Food Service Operations
Facility Acquisition

$

2,339
16,359
86,549
3,609
1,380,443

Total Depreciation Governmental Activities

$ 1,489,299

6. Accrued Salaries
Certified instructors of the District are contracted for nine months annually between Labor Day
and June 1. These instructors, while only working nine months, are paid for their services in
twelve equal monthly installments. On June 30 of each year they have completed their entire
contract, but have only received 10/12 of the related compensation with the difference to be
paid over the summer break. The difference, totaling $2,153,557, is reflected as an accrued
expense at June 30, 2017.
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7. Long-Term Debt
Series 2012H Certificate of Participation, Tax Exempt Matching Money Bonds, Series
2013 General Obligation Bonds Payable - These general obligation bonds were issued
November 27, 2012 and February 6, 2013, respectively, for the purpose of constructing a new
high school. The Series 2012H Certificate of Participation Bonds of $19,357,769 were used to
match $22,724,338 in State of Colorado BEST program funds as required under the State of
Colorado Building Excellent Schools Today Qualified School Construction Program. The
proceeds from the bonds were transferred to an account administered by the State of Colorado
until needed for construction costs. This account is shown as “cash with fiscal agent” in the
High School Capital Projects Fund. In addition to the Series 2012H Certification of Participation
Bonds and the BEST program funds, the District will use $1,890,000 of Series 2013 General
Obligation Bonds to finance new athletic fields for the District. The Series 2012H Certificate of
Participation Bonds were issued at an interest rate of 3.01%. The Series 2013 General
Obligation Bonds carry interest at 2% to 3%. The repayment of the bonds is recorded in the
Debt Service Fund.
The annual requirement to amortize the bonds outstanding are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2029-2027
2028-2032
2033

Series 2012H
Series 2013
Certificates of Participation General Obligation Bonds
Principal
Interest
Principal
Interest
$
810,202 $ 478,949 $ 80,000 $
43,000
834,556
454,229
80,000
41,400
859,642
428,766
85,000
39,750
885,482
402,538
85,000
38,050
912,098
375,521
85,000
35,925
4,988,602
1,443,063
480,000
138,000
5,784,812
634,885
555,000
60,375
1,263,353
18,988
120,000
1,800

Total

$ 16,338,747

$4,236,939

$1,570,000

$

398,300

Capital Lease Payable – In fiscal year 2017 the District entered into a lease agreement for
2014 Thomas C2 71 passenger bus. The lease was for $69,750. The lease is payable in 3
annual installments of $24,586, including interest at 2.920% beginning September 1, 2017.
The lease is serviced by the General Fund and the bus serves as collateral. All payment
obligations of the District are subject to annual appropriation by the Board of Education.
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The annual requirements to amortize the capital lease are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending June 30
2018
2019
2020

Capital Lease
Principal
Interest
$
22,552 $
2,034
23,210
1,375
23,888
698

Total

$

69,650

$

4,107

Changes in Long-Term Debt - A summary of changes in long-term debt follows:
Long Term
Debt
July 1, 2016

Issued

Retired

Long Term
Debt
June 30, 2017

Long-Term Debt
Series 2012H Certificate of Participation $ 17,125,306
Series 2013 General Obligation Bonds
1,650,000
Capital Lease

$

69,650

$ (786,559) $ 16,338,747
(80,000)
1,570,000
69,650

Total Long-Term Debt

$

69,650

$ (866,559) $ 17,978,397

$ 18,775,306

8. Fund Balance Restrictions and Assignments
Restricted indicates that a portion of the fund balance can only be spent for specific purposes
because of state of federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.
Assigned indicates amounts that are designated for a specific purpose by the Board of
Education but are not spendable until appropriated. The District uses the following restrictions
and assignments:
Restricted
TABOR is required by an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X; Section 20, known
as the Tabor Amendment, which requires local government units to establish emergency
reserves. The designation is a minimum of three percent of the current fiscal year eligible
expenditures. Local governments are not allowed to use the emergency reserves to
compensate for economic conditions, revenue shortfalls, or salary or benefit increases.
Fund balance reserved for emergencies consists of $850,000 in the General Fund.
Food service indicates the amount of fund balance that is restricted for future food service
of the district. $138,473 is restricted in the Food Service Fund.
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Capital Projects indicates the amount of fund balance that is restricted for future capital
projects. Fund Balance restricted for the construction of a new high school and demolition
of the old high school pursuant to the issuance of the 2012 Certificate of Participation Bonds
and the 2013 General Obligation Bonds consist of $1,818,051. Fund balance restricted for
capital project in the Capital Projects fund consists of $686,808.
Debt Service indicates the amount of fund balance that is restricted for the repayment of
the District’s outstanding bonds. Fund balance restricted for debt service consists of
$1,422,991 in the Bond Redemption Fund.
Colorado Preschool Program indicates the amount ($49,931) for the preschool program.
Committed represents 2009 property tax paid by Kinder Morgan in fiscal year 2016
($1,251,294). Kinder Morgan has appealed the assessed values for these funds and has
appealed to the state. The Montezuma County (Cortez) Board of Education, per resolution,
committed these funds until the process is resolved in the courts.

Assigned
Assigned for future expenditures - indicates anticipated fund balance available for
appropriation in the next budget year. Fund balances assigned for future expenditures
consist of the following:
General Fund
Governmental Designated-Purpose Grants Fund

$ 5,067,802
8,756

Totals

$ 5,076,558

9. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
Budgeted amounts reported in the accompanying financial statements are as originally
adopted and as amended by the Board of Directors throughout the year. Following is a
summary of the revised budget, actual amount spent and variance.
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Governmental Activities
General Fund
Food Service Fund
Governmental Designated
Purpose Grants Fund
Bond Redemption Fund
High School Building Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Business-Type Activities
Internal Service Fund
Self Insurance Fund
Fiduciary Fund
Student Trust Agency Fund

Revised
Budget

Actual

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

$ 19,614,948
1,206,194

$ 18,391,370
1,081,482

$ 1,223,578
124,712

3,124,737
2,847,468
2,831,705
1,106,904

2,355,380
1,414,107
528,450
326,327

769,357
1,433,361
2,303,255
780,577

4,149,823

2,622,454

1,527,369

750,000

498,848

251,152

Appropriations are adopted by resolution for each fund in total and lapse at the end of each
year. Over-expenditures are not deemed to exist unless the fund as a total has
expenditures in excess of appropriations.

10. Jointly Governed Organization
The District is a participant among nine school districts in a jointly governed organization to
operate the San Juan Board of Cooperative Educational Services (BOCES). The BOCES is a
regional education service unit created under the “Board of Cooperative Services Act of 1965”
of the Colorado Revised Statutes. The BOCES provides unique education services that the
member districts could not provide individually on a cost-effective basis. The BOCES
governing board is made up of representatives from each member district’s board. The
governing board control budgeting and fiscal matters. The District does not have an ongoing
financial interest in or ongoing financial responsibility for the BOCES. Financial statements for
the BOCES can be obtained by contacting the Director of Business Services at (970)247-3261.
The District had no debt with BOCES at year end.

11. Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Plan Description – Eligible employees of the District are provided with pensions through the
School Division Trust Fund (SCHDTF), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by PERA. Plan benefits are specified in Title 24, Article 51 if the
Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.), administrative rules set forth at 8 C.C.R. 1502-1, and
applicable provisions of the federal Internal Revenue Code. Colorado State law provisions may
be amended from time to time by the Colorado General Assembly. PERA issues a publicly

40

MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at
www.copera.org/investments/pera-financial-reports.
Benefits Provided – PERA provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits. Retirement
benefits are determined by the amount of service credit earned and/or purchased, highest
average salary, the benefit structure(s) under which the member retires, the benefit option
selected at retirement, and age at retirement. Retirement eligibility is specified in tables set forth
at C.R.S. § 24-51-602, 604, 1713, and 1714.
The lifetime retirement benefit for all eligible retiring employees under the PERA benefit
structure is the greater of the:
•

Highest average salary multiplied by 2.5 percent and then multiplied by years of service
credit.

•

The value of the retiring employee’s member contribution account plus a 100 percent match
on eligible amounts as of the retirement date. This amount is then annuitized into a monthly
benefit based on life expectancy and other actuarial factors.

In all cases the service retirement benefit is limited to 100 percent of highest average salary
and also cannot exceed the maximum benefit allowed by federal Internal Revenue Code.
Members may elect to withdraw their member contribution accounts upon termination of
employment with all PERA employers; waiving rights to any lifetime retirement benefits earned.
If eligible, the member may receive a match of either 50 percent or 100 percent on eligible
amounts depending on when contributions were remitted to PERA, the date employment was
terminated, whether 5 years of service credit has been obtained and the benefit structure under
which contributions were made.
Benefit recipients who elect to receive a lifetime retirement benefit are generally eligible to
receive post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) as established by State Statutes.
Benefit recipients who elect to receive a lifetime retirement benefit are generally eligible to
receive post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments, referred to as annual increases in the C.R.S.
Benefit recipients under the PERA benefit structure who began eligible employment before
January 1, 2007 and all benefit recipients of the DPS benefit structure receive an annual
increase of 2 percent, unless PERA has a negative investment year, in which case the annual
increase for the next three years is the lesser of 2 percent or the average of the Consumer
Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Workers (CPI-W) for the prior calendar year.
Benefit recipients under the PERA benefit structure who began eligible employment after
January 1, 2007 receive an annual increase of the lesser of 2 percent or the average CPI-W for
the prior calendar year, not to exceed 10 percent of PERA’s Annual Increase Reserve (AIR) for
the SCHDTF.
Disability benefits are available for eligible employees once they reach five years of earned
service credit and are determined to meet the definition of disability. The disability benefit
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amount is based on the retirement and benefit formula shown above considering a minimum 20
years of service credit.
Survivor benefits are determined by several factors, which include the amount of earned
service credit, highest average salary of the deceased, the benefit structure(s) under which
service credit was obtained, and the qualified survivor(s) who will receive the benefits.
Contributions – Eligible employees and the District are required to contribute to the SCHDTF
at a rate set by Colorado statute. The contribution requirements are established under C.R.S.
§ 24-51-401, et seq. Eligible employees are required to contribute 8 percent of their PERAincludable salary. The employer contribution requirements are summarized in the table below:
For the
Year Ended
December 31,
2016
1

Employer Contribution Rate
Amount of Employer Contribution apportioned to the
Health Care Trust Fund (HCTF) as specified in

For the
Year Ended
December 31,
2017

10.15%

10.15%

-1.02%

-1.02%

Amount Apportioned to the SCHDTF
Amortization Equalization Disbursement (AED) as

9.13%

9.13%

specified in C.R.S. § 24-51-411 1
Supplemental Amortization Equalization
Disbursement (SAED) as specified in C.R.S.

4.50%

4.50%

4.50%

5.00%

18.13%

18.63%

C.R.S. § 24-51-208(1)(f)1
1

§ 24-51-411

1

Total Employer Contribution Rate to the SCHDTF

1

1

Rates are expressed as a percentage of salary as defined in C.R.S. § 24-51-101(42)

Employer contributions are recognized by the SCHDTF in the period which the compensation
becomes payable to the member and the District is statutorily committed to pay the
contributions to the SCHDTF. Employer contributions recognized by the SDHDTF from the
District were $2,212,965 for the year ended June 30, 2017.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2017 the District reported a liability of $80,611,744 for its proportionate share of the
net position liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2016, and the
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of December 31, 2015. Standard update procedures were used to roll forward the
total pension liability to December 31, 2016. The District proportion of the net pension liability
was based on the District’s contribution to the SCHDTF for the calendar year 2016 relative to
the total contributions of participating employers to the SCHDTF.
At December 31, 2016, the Districts proportion was .2707466391 percent, which was decrease
of .0104678976 percent from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2015.
For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District recognized pension expense of $10,557,649.
As June 30, 2017, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Difference between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
$ 1,007,770

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$
(709)

26,156,830

(363,518)

Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investment

2,695,489

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

1,133,139
$ 30,993,228

$

(364,227)

$1,133,139 reported as deferred outflows or resources related to pensions, resulting from
contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the
net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Year Ended June 30
2017
2018
2019
2020

$ 11,804,897
11,810,843
5,853,236
26,886
$ 29,495,862

Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liability in the December 31, 2015 actuarial
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs:
Actuarial cost method
Price inflation
Real wage growth
Wage inflation
Salary increases, including wage inflation
Long-term investment rate of return, net of pension plan
investments expense, including price inflation
Discount Rate
Future post-retirement benefit increases:
PERA Benefit Structure hired prior to 1/1/07
and DPS Benefit Structure (automatic)
PERA Benefit Structure hired after 12/31/06
(ad hoc, substantively automatic)

Entry Age
2.80 percent
1.10 percent
3.90 percent
3.90 - 10.10 percent
7.50 percent
7.50 percent

2.00 percent
Financed by the Annual
Increase Reserve

Based on the 2016 experience analysis and the October 28, 2016 actuarial assumptions
workshop, revised economic and demographic assumptions were adopted by PERA’s Board on
November 18, 2016 and effective as of December 31, 2016. These revised assumptions
shown below were reflected in the roll-forward calculation of the total pension liability from
December 31, 2015 to December 31, 2016:
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Actuarial cost method
Price inflation
Real wage growth
Wage inflation
Salary increases, including wage inflation
Long-term investment rate of return, net of pension plan
investments expense, including price inflation
Discount Rate
Future post-retirement benefit increases:
PERA Benefit Structure hired prior to 1/1/07
and DPS Benefit Structure (automatic)
PERA Benefit Structure hired after 12/31/06
(ad hoc, substantively automatic)

Entry Age
2.40 percent
1.10 percent
3.50 percent
3.50 - 9.70 percent
7.25 percent
5.26 percent

2.00 percent
Financed by the Annual
Increase Reserve

Mortality rates used in the December 31, 2015 valuation were based on the RP-2000
Combined Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, with adjustments for mortality
improvements based on a projection of Scale AA to 2020 with Males set back 1 year, and
Females set back 2 years. Active member mortality was based upon the same mortality rates
but adjusted to 55 percent of the base rate for males and 40 percent of the base rate for
females. For disabled retirees, the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table (set back 2 years for
males and set back 2 years for females) was assumed.
The actuarial assumptions used the December 31, 2015, valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2008 to December 31, 2011, adopted
by PERA’s governing board on November 13, 2012 and an economic assumption study,
adopted by PERA’s governing board on November 15, 2013 and January 17, 2014.
As a result of the 2016 experience analysis and the October 28, 2016 actuarial assumptions
workshop, revised economic and demographic actuarial assumptions including withdrawal
rates, retirement rates for early reduced and unreduced retirement, disability rates,
administrative expense load, and pre- and post-retirement and disability mortality rates were
adopted by PERA’s Board on November 18, 2016 to more closely reflect PERA’s actual
experience. As the revised economic and demographic assumptions are effective as of the
measurement date, December 31, 2016, these revised assumptions were reflected in the total
pension liability roll-forward procedures.
Healthy mortality assumptions for active members reflect the RP-2014 White Collar Employee
Mortality Table, a table specifically developed for actively working people. To allow for an
appropriate margin of improved mortality prospectively, the mortality rates incorporate a 70
percent factor applied to male rates and a 55 percent factor applied to female rates.
Healthy, post-retirement mortality assumptions reflect the RP-2014 White Collar Healthy
Annuitant Mortality Table, adjusted as follows:

45

MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2017
•

Males: Mortality improvement projected to 2018 using the MP-2015 projection scale, a
93 percent factor applied to rates for ages less than 80, a 113 percent factor applied to
rates for ages 80 and above, and further adjustments for credibility.

•

Females: Mortality improvement projected to 2020 using the MP-2015 projection scale,
a 68 percent factor applied to rates for ages less than 80, a 106 percent factor applied to
rates for ages 80 and above, and further adjustments for credibility

For disabled retirees, the mortality assumption was changed to reflect 90 percent of the RP2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table.
The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of regular experience studies
prepared every four or five years for PERA. Recently, this assumption has been reviewed more
frequently. The most recent analyses were outlined in presentations to PERA’s Board on
October 28, 2016. As a result of the October 28, 2016 actuarial assumptions workshop and the
November 18, 2016 PERA Board meeting, the economic assumptions changed, effective
December 31, 2016, as follows:
•

Investment rate of return assumption decreased from 7.50 percent per year,
compounded annually, net of investment expenses to 7.25 percent per year,
compounded annually, net of investment expenses.

•

Price inflation assumption decreased from 2.80 percent per year to 2.40 percent per
year.

•

Real rate of investment return assumption increased from 4.70 percent per year, net of
investment expenses, to 4.85 percent per year, net of investment expenses.

•

Wage inflation assumption decreased from 3.90 percent per year to 3.50 percent per
year.

Several factors were considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption for the
SCHDTF, including long-term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a
log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected return, net of investment expense and inflation) were developed by the
investment consultant for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation.
As of the November 18, 2016 adoption of the current long-term expected rate of return by the
PERA Board, the target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table:
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Target
Allocation
21.20%
7.42%
18.55%
5.83%
19.32%
1.38%
1.84%
0.46%
8.50%
6.00%
8.50%
1.00%

U.S. Equity - Large Cap
U.S. Equity - Small Cap
Non U.S. Equity - Developed
Non U.S. Equity - Emerging
Core Fixed Income
High Yield
Non U.S. Fixed Income - Developed
Emerging Market Debt
Core Real Estate
Opportunity Fund
Private Equity
Cash
Total

10 Year
Expected
Geometric Real
Rate of Return
4.30%
4.80%
5.20%
5.40%
1.20%
4.30%
0.60%
3.90%
4.90%
3.80%
6.60%
0.20%

100.00%

In setting the long-term expected rate of return, projections employed to model future returns
provide a range of expected long-term returns that, including expected inflation, ultimately
support a long-term expected rate of return assumption of 7.25%
Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.26 percent.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate applied the actuarial cost
method and assumptions shown above. In addition, the following methods and assumptions
were used in the projection of cash flows:
•

Updated economic and demographic actuarial assumptions adopted by PERA’s Board
on November 18, 2016.

•

Total covered payroll for the initial projection year consists of the covered payroll of the
active membership present on the valuation date and the covered payroll of future plan
members assumed to be hired during the year. In subsequent projection years, total
covered payroll was assumed to increase annually at a rate of 3.50%.

•

Employee contributions were assumed to be made at the current member contribution
rate. Employee contributions for future plan members were used to reduce the estimated
amount of total service costs for future plan members.

•

Employer contributions were assumed to be made at rates equal to the fixed statutory
rates specified in law and effective as of the measurement date, including current and
estimated future AED and SAED, until the Actuarial Value Funding Ratio reaches 103%,
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at which point, the AED and SAED will each drop 0.50% every year until they are zero.
Additionally, estimated employer contributions included reductions for the funding of the
AIR and retiree health care benefits. For future plan members, employer contributions
were further reduced by the estimated amount of total service costs for future plan
members not financed by their member contributions.
•

Employer contributions and the amount of total service costs for future plan members
were based upon a process used by the plan to estimate future actuarially determined
contributions assuming an analogous future plan member growth rate.

•

The AIR balance was excluded from the initial fiduciary net position, as, per statute, AIR
amounts cannot be used to pay benefits until transferred to either the retirement benefits
reserve or the survivor benefits reserve, as appropriate. As the ad hoc post-retirement
benefit increases financed by the AIR are defined to have a present value at the longterm expected rate of return on plan investments equal to the amount transferred for
their future payment, AIR transfers to the fiduciary net position and the subsequent AIR
benefit payments have no impact on the Single Equivalent Interest Rate (SEIR)
determination process when the timing of AIR cash flows is not a factor (i.e., the plan’s
fiduciary net position is not projected to be depleted). When AIR cash flow timing is a
factor in the SEIR determination process (i.e., the plan’s fiduciary net position is
projected to be depleted), AIR transfers to the fiduciary net position and the subsequent
AIR benefit payments were estimated and included in the projections.

•

Benefit payments and contributions were assumed to be made at the end of the month.

Based on the above assumptions and methods, the projection test indicates the SCHDTF’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be depleted in 2041 and, as a result, the municipal bond
index rate was used in the determination of the discount rate. The long-term expected rate of
return of 7.25 percent on pension plan investments was applied to periods through 2041 and
the municipal bond index rate, the December average of the Bond Buyer General Obligation
20-year Municipal Bond Index published weekly by the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System, was applied to periods on and after 2041 to develop the discount rate. For the
measurement date, the municipal bond index rate was 3.86 percent, resulting in a discount rate
of 5.26 percent.
As of the prior measurement date, the projection test indicated the SCHDTF’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments of 7.50
percent was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability. The discount rate determination did not use a municipal bond index rate and the
discount rate was 7.50 percent, 2.24 percent higher compared to the current measurement
date.
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Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate. The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 5.26 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of
the net position liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentagepoint lower (4.26 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (6.26 percent) than the current rate:
Current
1 % Decrease Discount Rate
1 % Increase
(4.26%)
(5.26%)
(6.26%)
Proportionate share of the net
pension liability
$ 81,417,861 $ 80,611,744 $ 79,805,627
Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detail information of the SCHDTF’s fiduciary net position is
available in PERA’s comprehensive annual financial report which can be obtained at
www.copera.org/investments/pera-financial-reports.

12. Other Post-Employment Benefits
Health Care Trust Fund
Plan Description – The District contributed to the Health Care Trust Fund (“HCTF”), a costsharing multiple-employer healthcare trust administered by PERA. The HCTF benefit provides
a health are premium subsidy and health care program (known as PERACare) to PERA
participating benefits recipients and their eligible beneficiaries. Title 24, Article 51, Part 12 of
the C.R.S., as amended, established the HCTF and sets forth a framework that grants authority
to the PERA Board to contract, self-insure and authorize disbursements necessary in order to
carry out the purposes of the PERACare program, including the administration of health care
subsidies, PERA issues and a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that
included financial statements and required supplemental information for the HCTF. That report
can be obtained as www.copera.org/investments/pera-financial-reports.
Funding Policy – The District is required to contribute at a rate of 1.02 percent of PERAincludable salary for all PERA members as set by statute. No member contributions are
required. The contribution requirement for the District are established under Title 24, Article 51,
Part 4 of the C.R.S., as amended. The apportionment of the contributions to the HCTF is
established under Title 24, Article 51, Section 208(1)(f) of the C.R.S., as amended. For the
years ending June 30, 2015, 2016 and 2017, the District’s employer contributions to the HCTF
were $124,104, $125,341, and $122,791, respectively, equal to their required contribution for
each year.
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13. Defined Contribution Pension Plan
Voluntary Investment Program
Plan Description – Employees of the District that are also members of the SCHDTF may
voluntarily contribute to the Voluntary Investment Program, an Internal Revenue Code Section
401(k) defined contribution plan administered by PERA. Title 24 Article 51 Part 14 of the
C.R.S., as amended, assigns the authority to establish the Plan provisions to the PERA Board
of Trustees, PERA issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report for the
Plan. That report can be obtained at www.copera.org/investments/pera-financial-reports.
Funding Policy – The Voluntary Investment Program is funded by voluntary member
contributions up to the maximum limits set by the Internal Revenue Service, as established
under Title 24, Article 51, Section 1402 of the C.R.S., as amended. The District has not agreed
to match employee contributions. Employees are immediately vested in their own
contributions, employer contributions and investment earnings. For the year ended June 30,
2017, program members contributed $73,840 to the Voluntary Investment Program.

14. Risk Management
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
District is a member of the Colorado School Districts Self-Insurance Pool (The Pool). The Pool
was formed in 1981 to provide 93 member school districts and related educational facilities with
defined property and liability coverage through joint self-insurance and excess insurance. The
District pays an annual premium for its general insurance coverage. The Pool is self-sustaining
through member premiums and obtains excess insurance to limit per occurrence exposure to
$250,000.
The District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss including worker’s
compensation and employee health and accident insurance. There have been no settled
claims that have exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. There
have been no significant decreases in insurance coverage from the prior year.
In addition, the District has established a Self-Insurance Fund (an internal service fund) to
account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss for employee health and accident insurance.
Under this program, the Fund provides coverage from the purchase of commercial insurance
for a specific deductible of $120,000, with a maximum aggregate benefit of $1,000,000.
The plan received premiums of $2,968,515 and paid claims of $2,622,454 for the fiscal year.
$2,961,527 of the premiums charged were paid by the District and member charter schools’ as
employee benefits.
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15. Tax, Spending, and Debt Limitations
Colorado Voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, which
has several limitations, including revenue raising, spending abilities, and other specific
requirements of state and local governments. The people of the District voted to authorize the
spending of all monies in existing funds and to collect, retain, and expend the full revenue,
including state grants and taxes, generated during fiscal year 1998 and for each subsequent
year regardless of any limitation contained in Article X, Section 20, of the Colorado
Constitution. The Amendment is complex and subject to judicial interpretation. The District
believes it is in compliance with all other requirements of the amendment. However, the District
has made certain interpretations of the amendment’s language in order to determine its
compliance.

16. Compliance with the Financial Policies and Procedures Handbook
The school district is complying with the provisions of section 22-44-204(3), C.R.S., concerning
the use of the Financial Policies and Procedures Handbook adopted by the State Board of
Education." C.R.S. 29-1-603

17. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
The District had received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to a request for
reimbursement to grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grant.
District management believes that disallowance, it any, would be immaterial to the basic
financial statements.
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Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that
are required by the GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements.
Such information includes:
Schedule of the District's Pension Contributions
Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
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Last 10 Years*

Statutorily required contributions

$

Contributions in relation to the statutory required contribution

2017
2,212,965
2,212,965

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

School's covered employee payroll

$ 12,038,349

Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll

$

-

$

2,178,998
$

-

$ 12,288,408

18.38%

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.
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2016
2,178,998

17.73%

2015
2,052,694
2,052,694

$

-

$ 12,157,244
16.88%
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June 30, 2017
Last 10 Years*

Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
District's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability

12/31/2016

12/31/2015

12/31/2014

0.27074664%

0.28121454%

0.28997445%

School's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability

$ 80,611,744

$ 43,009,778

$ 39,301,278

School's covered employee payroll

$ 12,133,120

$ 12,251,192

$ 12,141,293

School's proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll

664.39%

351.07%

323.70%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

62.00%

59.20%

64.07%

* Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only two years are shown.
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Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not
required by the GASB, or a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented
for purposes of additional analysis.
These statements and schedules include:
Budgetary Comparison Schedules
Debt Service Fund
Bond Redemption Fund
Capital Projects Fund
High School Building Fund
Capital Projects Fund
Proprietary Fund
Self Insurance Fund
Fiduciary Fund
Agency Fund
Pupil Activity Fund
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Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues
Local sources
Property tax
Earnings on investments

Actual

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

$ 1,475,000

$ 1,475,000

$ 1,457,303
7,327

Total local sources

1,475,000

1,475,000

1,464,630

(10,370)

Total revenues

1,475,000

1,475,000

1,464,630

(10,370)

547,548
866,559

547,548
866,559
1,433,361

547,548
866,559

1,433,361

1,414,107

2,847,468

1,414,107

1,433,361

Expenditures
Debt Service
Interest
Principal
Appropriated reserves
Total expenditures

$

(17,697)
7,327

Excess revenue over (under) expenditures

60,893

(1,372,468)

50,523

1,422,991

Net change in fund balance

60,893

(1,372,468)

50,523

1,422,991

1,372,468

1,372,468

-

-

$ 1,422,991

Fund balance beginning of the year
Fund balance end of the year

1,376,319
$ 1,437,212
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Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues
Local sources
Earnings on investments
Other local

$

Total local sources

1,900

$

1,900

Actual
Amounts

1,900

1,900

State sources
Grants
Returns of Best Grant
Total state sources

$

1,871
5,000
6,871

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

$

(29)
5,000
4,971

418,068
(908,843)

(418,068)
908,843

-

-

(490,775)

490,775

1,900

1,900

(483,904)

(485,804)

Expenditures
Support Programs
Facilities acquisition

2,381,000

2,831,705

528,450

2,303,255

Total Support Programs

2,381,000

2,831,705

528,450

2,303,255

2,381,000

2,831,705

528,450

2,303,255

(2,379,100)

(2,829,805)

Total Revenues

Total Expenditures
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfer In
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

-

Net Changes in Fund Balances
Fund Balances beginning of the year
Fund Balances end of the year

-

(1,012,354)

1,817,451

600

600

600

600

(2,379,100)

(2,829,805)

(1,011,754)

2,379,100

2,829,805

2,829,805

-

-

$ 1,818,051

$ 1,818,051

$

-
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Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues
Local sources
Earnings on investments
Other local

$

Total local sources

400
141,600

$

Actual
Amounts

400
295,000

$

179
59,622

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

$

(221)
(235,378)

142,000

295,400

59,801

State sources
Grants

90,000

80,000

82,408

2,408

Total state sources

90,000

80,000

82,408

2,408

232,000

375,400

142,209

(233,191)

4,076
19
45,000
3,469
273,763

(4,076)
(19)
(45,000)
(3,469)
753,141
80,000

Total Revenues
Support Programs
Students
Business
Student transportation
Food Service
Facilities acquisition
Appropriated reserves
Total Support Programs
Total Expenditures

(235,599)

512,926
590,000

1,026,904
80,000

1,102,926

1,106,904

326,327

780,577

1,102,926

1,106,904

326,327

780,577

Excess revenues over (under) expenditures

(870,926)

(731,504)

(184,118)

547,386

Net Changes in Fund Balances

(870,926)

(731,504)

(184,118)

547,386

870,926

731,504

870,926

139,422

Fund Balances beginning of the year
Fund Balances end of the year

$

-
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$

686,808

$

686,808
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Internal Service Fund
Self Insurance Fund
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(Non GAAP Basis)
Actual
Amounts

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

Operating Revenues
Premium revenue

$ 2,671,200

$ 2,671,200

Total local sources

2,671,200

2,671,200

2,968,515

297,315

Operating Expenses
Central service
Administration fees
Medial and Prescription Claims
Appropriated reserves

218,297
2,556,564
916,580

218,297
2,431,526
1,500,000

42,767
2,579,687

175,530
(148,161)
1,500,000

Total operating expenses

3,691,441

4,149,823

2,622,454

1,527,369

(1,020,241)

(1,478,623)

346,061

1,824,684

5,327

5,027

351,388

1,829,711

1,478,323

-

Operating income (loss)
Non-Operating Revenue
Local sources
Earnings on investments

300

Change in net position non GAAP basis
Net position beginning of the year
Net position end of the year

300

(1,019,941)

(1,478,323)

1,019,941

1,478,323

$

-
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$

-

$

2,968,515

1,829,711

$

$

297,315

1,829,711
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Agency Fund
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Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues
Local sources
Other

$

Total local sources

750,000

$

Actual
Amounts

750,000

$

513,927

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavorable)

$

(236,073)

750,000

750,000

513,927

(236,073)

Total Revenues

750,000

750,000

513,927

(236,073)

Expenditures
Other objects

987,863

750,000

498,848

251,152

987,863

750,000

498,848

251,152

987,863

750,000

498,848

251,152

(237,863)

-

15,079

15,079

237,863

-

270,710

270,710

Total Expenditures
Total Expenditures
Net Change in Fund Balances
Due to agency recipients beginning of the year
Due to agency recipients end of the year

$

-
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-

$

285,789

$

285,789

INFORMATION REQUIRED BY OVERSIGHT AUTHORITIES
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Federal Grantor/
Pass-Through Grantor/
Program or Cluster Title

Federal
CFDA
Number

Pass-thru
Number

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through the Colorado Department of Education
School Breakfast Program
National School Lunch Program
Special Milk Program for Children

10.553
10.555
10.556

4553
4555
4556

Expenditures

$

Total

147,745
615,724
2,006
765,475

Pass through the Colorado Department of Human Services
Food Commodities

10.555

4555

78,468

Total

843,943

U.S. Department of Education
Direct program
Impact Aid - P.L. 81-874
Title VII - Indian Education

84.041
84.060

4041
4060

535,248
150,831

Total

686,079

Passed through the Colorado Department of Education
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Twenty-First Century Community Learning Centers
Rural Education Title VI Part B
Title I School Improvement
Title IIB Math and Science Partnership
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants Title II Part A

84.010
84.010
84.287
84.358
84.377
84.366
84.367

4010
5010
5287
7358
7377
5366
4367

792,341
268,434
146,352
55,906
68,889
78,147
190,028

Total

1,600,097

Passed through the Colorado Community College System
Career and Technical Education Perkins IV

84.048

4048

43,096

Total

2,329,272

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

$
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NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards present the
activity of all federal award programs expended by Montezuma County (Cortez)
School District RE-1 for the year ended June 30, 2017. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Therefore, some
amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or
used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented
using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

FOOD DISTRIBUTION
Non-monetary assistance is reported in the schedule at the fair market value of
the commodities received and disbursed.

SUBRECIPIENTS
Montezuma County (Cortez) School District RE-1 had no sub-recipients of
federal funds for the year ended June 30, 2017.

INDIRECT COST RATE
The District did not elect to use the 10 percent de minimus cost rate.
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SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS
1. The auditors’ report expresses an unqualified opinion on the (general purpose)
financial statements of Montezuma Cortez School District RE-1.
2. No instances of noncompliance material to the (general purpose) financial
statements of Montezuma Cortez School District RE-1 were disclosed during
the audit.
3. The auditors’ report on compliance for the major federal award programs for
Montezuma Cortez School District RE-1 expressed an unqualified opinion on
all major programs.
4. No instances of audit findings relating to major programs were disclosed
during the audit.
5. The programs tested as major programs included:
Child Nutrition Cluster
National School Lunch
CFDA Number 10.555
National School Breakfast CFDA Number 10.553
National School Milk
CFDA Number 10.556
6. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000.
7. Montezuma Cortez School District RE-1 was determined to be a low-risk
auditee.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

There were no findings or questioned costs relative to federal awards in the prior year.
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MONTEZUMA COUNTY (CORTEZ) SCHOOL DISTRICT RE-1
SCHEDULE OF CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

There were no audit findings to be included in the current audit report; therefore, a
corrective action plan is not necessary.

70

Colorado Preschool Program Fund

19

Pupil Activity Special Revenue Fund

Full Day Kindergarten Mill Levy Override

Transportation Fund

Bond Redemption Fund

Certificate of Participation (COP) Debt Service Fund

Building Fund

Special Building Fund

Capital Reserve Capital Projects Fund

Supplemental Cap Const, Tech, Main Fund

23

24

25

31

39

41

42

43

46

Risk-Related Activity Fund

Other Enterprise Funds

Private Purpose Trust Fund

Agency Fund

Pupil Activity Agency Fund

GASB 34:Permanent Fund

Foundations

72

73

74

79

85

Totals

Other Trust and Agency Funds

Fiduciary
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Totals

60,65-69 Other Internal Service Funds

64 (63)

50

Govt Designated-Purpose Grants Fund

22

Proprietary

Food Service Spec Revenue Fund

21

Totals

Supplemental Cap Const, Tech, Main. Fund

06

Special Revenue Fund

Charter School Fund

20,26-29

11

Risk Mgmt Sub-Fund of General Fund

18

Sub- Total

General Fund

10

Governmental

Fund Type &Number

Revenues, Expenditures, & Fund Balance by Fund

11/11/17
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+

274,487

0

0

274,487

0

0

0

1,478,323

0

1,478,323

0

12,183,203

0

1,316,811

0

2,829,805

0

1,372,468

0

0

0

7,005

182,706

0

0

835,936

5,638,472

55,726

57,722

5,525,024

Beg Fund Balance & Prior Per
Adj (6880*)

FINAL

515,797

0

0

515,797

0

0

0

12,314

0

12,314

0

27,296,890

0

187,318

0

-483,304

0

1,464,629

0

0

0

2,763,588

1,037,250

0

0

2,338,913

19,988,497

649,741

191,583

19,147,173

500,653

0

0

500,653

0

0

0

-339,073

0

-339,073

0

26,820,327

0

423,163

0

528,449

0

1,414,107

0

0

0

2,761,837

1,081,482

0

0

2,203,346

18,407,942

655,536

107,495

17,644,912

1000 - 5999 Total Revenues & 0001-0999 Total Expenditures &
Other Sources Other Uses
-

District: 2035 - MONTEZUMA-CORTEZ RE-1
Fiscal Year 2016-17
Colorado School District/BOCES

Auditors Integrity Report

Colorado Department of Education

=

289,631

0

0

289,631

0

0

0

1,829,711

0

1,829,711

0

12,659,765

0

1,080,965

0

1,818,051

0

1,422,991

0

0

0

8,756

138,473

0

0

971,502

7,219,026

49,931

141,811

7,027,285

6700-6799 & Prior Per Adj
(6880*) Ending Fund Balance
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